NSVM &

ASSOCIATES
INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Embassy East Business Park Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Embassy East Business Park Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 3 1st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and loss, other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

8-%3(1, 1t Floor, Above Canara Bank, Railway Parallel Road, Kumara Park West, Bangalore - 560 020. India, www.nsvm.in
[T +91 80 4150 6054/5/6] | 43746057/58 | E-people@nsvm.in |



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
Peate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
these financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

equired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the central
(ent in terms of Sections 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
pecified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.




2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer note 24 to the financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management of the Company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, that the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Management of the Company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge
pelief, other than that as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, that the Company



Vi.

has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule (e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31% March
2025, and therefore, compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not

applicable.

The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies Act (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from 1st April 2023. Based on our examination which included
test checks, the management has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of accounts, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded.
Further during the course of audit, we have not come across any instances where the
audit trail has been tampered with.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not paid any managerial remuneration to its directors during the financial year and hence
provision of section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

Jfor NSVM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number; 010072S

Partner

Membership No: 036508

UDIN: 25036508BMKNWOQO1917

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23" May 2025
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Annexure — B to the Independent auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of
Embassy East Business Park Private Limited (formerly known as Concord India Private Limited).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Embassy East Business Park
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the
ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred

to as the “Act”).
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

clieve that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Spmion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

A
)

$3/1, 1st Floor, Above Canara Bank, Railway Parallel Road, Kumara Park West, Bangalore - 560 020. India, www.nsvm.in
| T +91 80 4150 6054/5/6/ | 4374605758 | E-people@nsvm.in



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management

and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India”,

for NSV M & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Membership No. 036508

UDIN: 25036508BMKNWO1917

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 23 May 2025
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Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Embassy East
Business Park Private Limited (the Company ) for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

(1)
a)
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. (Classified as Investment Property

under IND AS 40).

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Investment Property has been
physically verified by the management during the year. which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of the immovable properties on lease and disclosed under Investment Property in
the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets during the
year,

€) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no proceedings has
been initiated during the year or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and the rules made
thereunder.

(ii)
a) The Company is engaged in the business of real estate development and related services. The
company does not hold any inventories in the form of land, properties under development, stock
of units and constructed properties as on reporting date and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a)

of the Order is not applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and based on our
examination of the books of accounts in the normal course of audit, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate, from bank or

i ancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the

Ipgey is not applicable to the Company.

No. 63/1, 1st Floor, Above Canara Bank, Railway Parallel Road, Kumara Park West, Bangalore - 560 020. India, www.nsvm.in
[ T +91 80 4150 6054/5/6] | 43746057/58 | E-people@nsvm.in



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, during the year the Company has not made any investments in, nor provided any
loans or advances in nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security to subsidiaries, joint
ventures, and associates, and to any other entity. Thus, paragraph 3(iii)(a)(A)(B), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c),
3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e), 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, wherever applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or has any amounts which are deemed to be deposits to
which the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act rules
framed thereunder and the directions issued by the RBI are applicable. Hence paragraph 3 (v) of
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under subsection (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. but
company does not meet the criteria of turnover specified as per Section 148 of companies act 2013.
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Services tax and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities other than those mentioned below

Name of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Due Date | Date of Remarks,
the Dues (Millions which  the Payment if any.
Statute ?) amount
relates

Income-tax | Tax 13.68 Mn July 23 07.08.2023 | 29.3.2025
Act, 1961 Deducted at

Source
Income-tax | Tax 13.68 Mn August 2023 | 07.09.2023 | 29.03.2025
Act, 1961 Deducted at

Source
Income-tax | Tax 119.66 Mn | September 07.10.2023 | 29.03.2025
Act, 1961 Deducted at 2023

Source

According to the information and explanations give to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Duty of Customs, Cess, goods and service tax and any other material statutory dues

¢ in arrears as at 31 March 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they
¢ payable except mentioned above.




b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
Goods and Service Tax, custom duty, and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)
(a) Based on our audit procedure and on the information and explanation given by the management,
we are of the opinion that the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing to

its lender as mentioned below.

Nature of Name of Amount not Whether No of days | Remarks, if
borrowing lender paid on due | principal or | delayed or any
date interest unpaid
Termloan |India  bulls | 54.74 mm Interest 25 There are no
housing 43.79 mm Interest 68 outstanding
finance 43.79 mm Interest 82 dues as on the
limited 43.79 mm Interest 51 report date
32.84 mm Interest 25
32.84 mm Interest 59
32.84 mm Interest 55
21.89 mm Interest 25
21.89 mm Interest 43
10.95 mm Interest 15
1049.26 mm Principal 19
1049.26 mm Principal 56
1049.26 mm Principal 55
1049.26 mm Principal 43

* The amount is shown including of Tax Deducted at Source.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company is
not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or other lenders.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not obtained any term loans during the year and hence reporting under this clause in not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, during the year has not been
raised funds for short term basis and deployed for long term purpose.




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii1)

()

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedure
performed, no money was raised by the way of public issue/follow-on-offer (including debt
instruments) and reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedure
performed, during the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares. During the year the company has issued right shares to its existing
shareholders as per section 62(1)(a) of companies act 2013 and company has complied with the
provisions of the companies act 2013 with regard to the issue of shares. As per letter of offer the
fund raised is to be utilized for expansion and growth and to strengthen its capital base. The Fund
raised was used to redeem existing preference shares.

Based upon audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported the course of our audit

Based upon audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the
management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in ADT - 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not Nidhi Co. and therefore clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties entered into by the Company during the year

are

in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act of 2013, wherever applicable and the details

thereof have been disclosed in the Financial Statement as required by the applicable accounting
standards and Companies Act, 2013. Further, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not
applicable as the Company is a Private Limited Company.

(a)

Based on the information and explanations provided to us and in our opinion, the Company has
_an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

3\ We have considered the internal audit reports issued by internal auditor for the period under audit.



(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the audit procedure performed, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking

Financial or Housing Finance activities as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) Based in audit procedure performed, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India

(d) Based on audit procedures performed and explanations obtained by us from the management, the

company or any of the companies in the group are not Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the preceding financial year.

Financial Year Amount in millions
2024-2025 153.00
2023-2024 313.82

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and

anagement plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit




(xx)

As the Company does not meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company is not required to spend any amount on activities related to corporate social responsibility
for the year ended March 31, 2025. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) is not
applicable.

for NSVM and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 0100728

C S Mani

Partner

UDIN: 25036508BMKNWO1917

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 23 May 2025



Embassy East Business Park Private Limited
CIN: US1101KA1973PTC002298

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in  millions unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment property 4 194.73 33295
Investment property under development 3 1,272 84 879.21
Other non-current asset 6 8,721.40 840635
Total non-current assets 10,188.97 9.618.51
Current assets
Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 7 18.39 0.16
- Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents & 1,670.63 -
- Other financial assets 9 343 -
Other current assets 10 2.85 1.46
Total current assets 1,695.30 1.62
Assets held for sale 11 264.14 99.52
Total assets 12,148.41 9,719.65
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 7.60 7.50
Other equity 13 (2,534.38) (2,386.10)
Total Equity (2,526.78) (2,378.60)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 14 - 1,046,32
Other non-current liabilities 15 4.113.03 1.55
Total Non-current liabilities 4,113.03 1,047.87
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 9.899.98 942221
- Other financial liabilities 17 28220 1,237.24
Other current Habilities 18 379.98 390.93
Total Current liabilities 10,562.16 11,050.38
Total equity and liabilities 12,148.41 9,719.65
Material accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

foir NSVM & Associates Embassy East Business Park Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0100

(s )g/*ﬂ"'(&"‘ef

G C S Mani Rajesh Kaimal Shailendra K §
Partner Director Director
Membership number: 036508 DIN: 03158687 DIN: 07984647
Place: Bengaluru Place: B luru  Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 23, 2025 Date: May 23, 2025 Date: May 23, 2025



Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: US1101KA1973PTC002298

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in  millions unless otherwise stated)

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income

Expenses
Other expenses
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation, amortization and tax
Finance costs
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense:
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Income tax expense
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Earnings per equity share:
Loss per share (equity shares, par value Rs 10 each)
Equity shares

- Basic

- Diluted

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for NSVM & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0100725

© G CS Mani
Partner
Membership number: 036508

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2025

Note

20

22

2]

26

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.78 p

13.89 5.18

14.67 5.18

36.23 25.77
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Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: USTI101KA1973PTC002298

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax (148.28) (308.64)
Adjustments:
- Guarantee fee income {4.72) (5.18)
- Guarantee fee expense 8.97 26.10
- Interest expense 117.75 261.95
- Interest Income (9.01) -
Operating loss before working capital changes (35.29) (25.77)
Changes in
- Other non current assets (265.11) 1.19
- Other current assets (1.39) (0.09)
- Other financial liabilities (917.24) 1,158.42
- Other current liabilities (7.78) 52.11
- Other non-current liabilitics 4,113.03 -
Cash (used in) operations 2,886.23 1,185.87
Taxes (paid)/ refund received (net) (49.94) -
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities 1,836.28 1,185.87
Cash flow from investing activities
Payment for Investment Properties under development (457.82) (B69.30)
Investment in Fixed Deposit (1,670.63) -
Interest Income received 5.58 -
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (2,122.87) (869.30)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Capital Advance given - (8.40)
Proceeds from Inter Corporate Deposit 3.998.44 3,069.95
Interest paid (117.76) (230.52)
Repayment of borrowings (4,575.86) (3.147.79)
Net cash generated from financing activities (695.18) (316.75)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18.23 (0.18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer nate 7) 0.16 0.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18.39 0.16
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
-Cash and bank balances (refer note 7) 18.39 .16
18.39 0.16

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Embassy East Business Park Private Limited
CIN: USHIDIKAISTIPTCO02298

Statement of change in equity
(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stared)

(A) Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 01,2023 7.50
Add: Issue of shares .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 7.50
Balance as at April 1,2024 7.50
Add: Issug of shares 0.10
Balance as at March 31, 2025 7.60
=
{B) Other equity*
Reserves and Surplus
Equity Uity f
2 Share component of PompOnERt o . Total .
Particulars Warrants Bberesrliee deferred Capital Reserve Securities Rgln!ncd otal other equity
loams taken guarantee premivm earnings
income

Balance as at April 1,2023 0.2e 158.56 T3.78 - 106.61 {1,516.61) (2.077.46)

Profit or (loss) for the year - - - - - (308.64) {308 64)

Balance a5 at March 31,2024 0.20 158.56 73,78 - 206.61 (2,825.25) {1,386.10)
i e

Balance as at April 1,2024 0.20 158.56 T3.78 - 206.61 (2,825.25) (2.386.10)

Profit or {loss) {or the year ” - - - - (148.28) [148.28)

Forfeiture of share warrants {0.20) - - 0.20 - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 - 158.506 73.78 0.20 2i6.61 {1,973.53) (2,534.38)
Pl

*Also refer note 13

Material accounting policies 3

The notes referred ta sbove form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our repart of even date attached
for NSVM & Assoclates

Chartered Accountants
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Jor and on behall of the Board of Directors of
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Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: UST101KA1973PTC002298

Notes to financial statements

(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stated)

1 Company background
Embassy East Business Park Private Limited (“EEBPL” or “the Company™), is a private limited company incorporated on February 15,1973 as
a public limited company and was later converted into a private limited company on April 09,2008, The Company has been formed primarily
for the purpose of real estate development. The Company is a subsidiary of NAM Estates Private Limited, a private limited company.
On October 22, 2020, the name of the Company has been changed from Concord India Private Limited to Embassy East Business Park Private
Limited.

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention
on accrual basis as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the
‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 23, 2023

2.2 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded-oft to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 Use of going concern assumptions

The company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
These financial statements, therefore, do not include any adjustments relating to recoverability and classification of asset amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the Company was unable to continue as a going concern.

24 Corrent versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current
when 1t is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afer the reporting
period.
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Formation about judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amount
recognised in the financial statements are included in the following note:

- Note 4: Classification of leasehold land as investment property



Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: US1101KA1973PTC002298

Notes to financial statements

(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stated)

2.6 Measurement of fair values

31

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a management oversight that
has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Board
of Directors The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as
broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board of Directors

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The company recognizes transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the year during which the change has occurred.

Material accounting policies

Impairment of assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost; and

- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCT are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrawer or issuer:

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization: or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured as
12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
Instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade reccivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing
security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCL, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognized in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

The Company's non-financial assets and inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.



Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: UST101KA1973PTCO002298

Notes to financial statements

(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stated)
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment, inclusive of GST and net of taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue
arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commaodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition eriteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

Lease/sub-lease rental income is recognised when right to receive such income is established in accordance with the terms of the contract with
the clients

Recognition of, interest income or expense

Interest expense/ income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the amortized cost of financial instrument.

In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortized cost of the liability.

Guarantee income
Financial guarantees issued by the company are recognised initially at fair value, and the financial guarantee is recognised in P&L over the
tenure of the guarantee.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial
liabilities as appropriate, Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the company as lessee are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Investment Property

i. Recognition and measurement

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,if any except for land which has an infinite useful life. The cost
of the assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as Property under development.

Subsequent expenditure on investment propertics is added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent
expenditure is recognized as an expense in the peniod in which it is incurred. When an investment property is disposed of, the resulting gain or
loss recognized in the Statement of profit and loss is the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property.

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the note 4. Fair values is determined by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

Financial Instruments

a). Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.



Embassy East Business Park Private Limited

CIN: US1101KA1973PTC002298

Notes to financial statements

(All amounts are in  millions unless otherwise stated)

b) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- amortized cost;

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows: and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit or loss.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCT — equity investment). This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above arc measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of thase policies in practice. These include whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the

sale of the assets;

—how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are
managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assels managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity,

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for Derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose,
consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL,

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features:

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus
acerued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FEVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on Derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss,

¢) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of

ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in

profit or loss.

a) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss and amortized cost.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial liability not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial Labilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Amortized cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impaitment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends cither to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to affset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Low Interest and interest free loans

For all loans which are offered at a below-market rate or interest free, the Company considers the following aspects:

* All the terms and conditions of the loan

* Local market circumstances and the industry practice

* Interest rates currently charged by or offered to the entity for loans with similar risks and characteristics.

As per Ind AS 109, the Company recognizes all financial instruments including interest free loans, on initially recognition at their fair value.
Ind AS 109 requires the difference between the transaction price and the fair value of a low-interest or interest free loan to be recognised as a
gain or loss (if the fair value is based on observable inputs), unless it qualifies for recognition as an asset or liability. This normally depends on
the relationship between the lender and borrower or the reason for providing the loan.

On fair valuation of an interest-free loan from a parent to a subsidiary, the *other component’ being the difference between the fair value and
the face value of the loan are considered as an equity infusion (‘other equity’) by the parent.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non current assets, comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through a sale transaction rather than continuing use.

Such assets, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Losses on initial classification as held
for sale and subsequent gains and issues on re- measurement are recognised in profit and loss.

Once classified as asset held for sale such investment property are no longer depreciated,

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly

in equity or in other comprehensive income,

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) d or substantively ted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary difference arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in any case of a history of
recent losses, the Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is
convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax
assets - unrecognized or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax 15 measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of the deferred tax reflects tax consequences that would flow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on a different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

The disclosure of contingent liability is made when, as a result of obligating events, there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the company are segregated.
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3.16
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3.18

Earnings per share
The basic eamings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to owner's of the company for the year by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic
earnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date. unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces eamings per share or increase loss

per share are included.

Operating segments

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting", the Company is primarily engaged in a business of real estate
development and has no other primary reportable segments. The Board of Directors of the Company allocate the resources and assess the
performance of the Company, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the
business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed. Thus the segment revenue, segment result, total carrying
amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segments assets, the total amount of charge
for depreciation and amortisation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and as on
that date. As the Company operates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment 1s disclosed.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Recent ting pr

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is amendment to Ind AS 21 “Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ such amendments would have been applicable from 01 April 2025.

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should
determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of
its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the
entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for the period on or after 01 April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncement and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have a
significant impact on the Company's Financial Statements.

Standards issued/amended and became effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified new standards or amendment to existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time, The Company has applied following amendments for the first-time during the current year which are
effective from | April 2024,

Amendments to Ind AS 116 - Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked to index or a rate in a way

it does not result inte gain on Right of Use asset it retains.

Introduction of Ind AS 117

MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements, to avoid
diversities in practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to all companies Le., to all "insurance contracts” regardless of the issuer.
However, Ind AS 117 is not applicable to the entities which are insurance companies registered with IRDAL

The application of Ind AS 117 has no impact on the Company financial statement as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature
of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have a
significant impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.
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12 Share capital

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Authorised capital
50,000 (Previous year: 50,000) 9% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs 100 each 5.00 5.00
15,00,000 (Previous vear: 15,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 15.00 15.00
20,00 20.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
760,224 (Previous year: 750,224) Equity shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up 7.60 7.50
7.60 7.50

{a) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of shares in the Company :

Name of the share holder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each
Embassy Developments Limited (Including nominee shares) 7.60,224 100% - -
Nam Estates Private Limited * - - 382,614 51%
Florence Investments Limited {Mauritius) - - 3,67.610 49%

* As on 24, January 2025 Nam Estates Private Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited

(b) Equity shares of Rs 10 each:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 7,50,224 7.50 7,350,224 7.50
Add: shares issued during the year 10,000 0.10 = -
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 7,60,224 7.60 7,50,224 1.50

{c) Shareholding of Promoters

Name of the share holder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 Change during the
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding Year
Embassy Developments Limited (Including nominee shares) 7.60,224 100% - - 100%
Nam Estates Private Limited * - - 382,614 51% =100%
7,60,224 100% 3,582,614 51% -

*ds on 24, January 2025 Nam Estates Private Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited

(d) Rights, entitlements and obligations of different classes of shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each, Each holder of equity share, as reflected in the records of the
Company as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholder's meeting.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts existed as at the balance sheet date. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

(e} Buy back of shares and shares allotted by way of bonus shares

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has it bought back any class of equity shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has it issued shares for consideration other than cash.
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4 Investment property

Tangible Assets

Description Leasehold land Total
(refer note -i)

Gross block (cost or deemed cost)
Balance as at April 01, 2023 332.95 332.95
Additions during the year - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33295 33295
Balance as at April 01, 2024 332.95 332.95
Additions during the year - -
Reclass to Asset Held for Sale (138.22) (138.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 194.73 194,73
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - -
Additions during the year - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 = x
Balance as at April 01, 2024 - -
Additions during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5 2
Carrying amount(net):
Balance as at March 31, 2024 33295 332.95
Balance as at March 31, 2025 194.73 194.73
Fair value (refer note ii below)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 26.,920.00 26,920.00
Balance as at March 31, 2025 15,828.00 15,828.00

Notes:

i) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for Investment Property

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rental income derived from investment properties = -
Dirv::ct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income (10.01) (11.88)
during the year
Loss arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses (10.01) (11.88)
Less: Depreciation - -
Loss arising from investment properties before indirect expenses (10.01) (11.88)

ii) Fair value

The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications
and rccent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the investment property

annually.

The fair value measurement for all of the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

The external independent valuer has used "Income Approach- Discounted cash flow method" method approach for assessing the fair value of the property.

The "Income Approach- Discounted cash flow method” is based on the forecasted income generated from the development,discounted to the present day value
at the market based discounted rates. The future cash flows from the development are assessed based on precisely stated market based assumptions.
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4 Investment property (continued)
Note (continued):

iii) Restriction on realisability

a) Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) has allotted 78.2219 acres of land to the Company on lease-cum-sale basis. Of the above, 58 acres
of land is leased for a perfod of 20 years and 20.2219 acres is for a period of 11 years. During the year ended March 31, 2022 KIADB extended the 20,2219
acres lease period to 20 years from 11 years of initial lease period. The allotment is to develop infrastructure facilities for IT/ITES companies. In accordance
with the terms of agreement with KIADB, a consideration of Rs 398.76 millions has been paid to KIADB and Rs 33.7 millions towards stamp duty. The
agreement gives a right to the Company to acquire land at the end of the lease term for no additional consideration. However, if KIADB incurs any further cost
towards settlement to the previous owners, KIADB has the right to recover the additional consideration from the Company. During the period of the lease term
till transfer of ownership, the Company is required to pay a nominal rent of Rs .078 Millions per annum, As at the balance sheet date, as KIADB has not
intimated any additional consideration, the Management believes that no further cost is required to be paid to KIADB,

The above land includes 18 acres of land which has been sub-leased to a party under a lease cum sale agreement and also includes 25 acres of land which has
been sub-leased to a party under Sub-lease agreement and Agreement to Sell. Accordingly, the proportionate cost of such 43 acres of land has been classified
as assets held for sale - refer note 10 to the financial statements.

5 Investment property under development

D inti As at As at
i March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Investment property under development (refer note (i) below) 1,272.84 879.21
1,272.84 879.21
Notes:
(i) Investment Property under development ageing schedule

Stitiis As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Project in progress
Less than | year 397.04 §69.30
1-2 years 869.29 -
2-3 years 0.00 6.90
More than 3 years 6.51 3.01
Total 1,272.84 879.21
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6 Other Non-current asset

-1

-]

10

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Capital Advance (refer note 33)

- Turnkey Project {refer note (a) below) §.402.52 8,402.52

Balances with Government authoritics

- Advance tax net of provision for tax 53.38 344

Prepayments 265.50 0.39

8,721.40 8,406.35
Note (a) :-

The Company has entered into a land aggregation agreement("Agreement”) with NAM Estates Privatc Limited (NAM Estates Privale
Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited on January 24, 2025) during financial year 21-22 and advanced an amount of Rs
8,394.12 million, towards acquisition of certain parcel of land. Pursuant to the contract agreement ("Contract") and letter dated June 01,
2023 | the advance paid ds Property Procu t shall be idered as paid towards contract agreement (Tumkey Project) for
Plant and Machinery.

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 18.39 0.16
18.39 0.16

Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Others - Restricted Cash

Fixed Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 menths but less than 12 months 1,670.63 <

1,670.63 e

Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest accrued but not due on

- Fixed deposits 343 =
Advance recoverable 6.82 6.82
6.82 6.82
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (6.82) (6.82)
343 -
Other current assets
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Advances other than capital advances
Advances for rendering of services 2.53 0.11
Prepayments 0.32 1.35
1.85 1.46

Assets held for sale

The Company has entered into an agreement with Mandava Holdings Private Limited for sub-lease cum sale of 18 acres of the total 78
acres of land obtained on lease-cum-sale basis from Karnataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB).

As at the balance sheet date, the assets held for sale has been stated at carrying amount (being lower of cost and agreed sub-lease-cum
sale value). Completion of the transaction is dependent on obtaining an NOC from KIADB for sublease of the said land.

As on March 20, 2025, the company has entered into sub-lease agreement and agreement to sell for 25 acres of the total 78 acres of land
obtained on lease-cumesale basis from Kamataka Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB). The said Sub-lease and Agreemenl to
sell is conditional upon fulfilment of specified obligations by both parties as stipulated in the agreement.

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Iny Property held for sale 264.14 99,52

264.14 99.52
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13 Other Equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Reserves and surplus*
Securities premium (refer note b below)

At the commencement of the year 206.61 206.61
Add: Additions during the year 4 .
At the end of the year 206.61 206.61

Retained earnings (refer note ¢ below)

At the commencement of the year (2,825.25) (2,516.61)
Add: Additions during the year (148.28) {308.64)
Af the end of the year (2,973.53) (2,825.25)

Share warrants (refer note a below)

At the commencement of the year 0.20 0.20
Add: Additions during the year # 5
Less: Forfeiture during the year (0.20)

At the end of the year - 0.20

Capital Reserve

At the commencement of the year -

Add: Additions during the year 0.20

At the end of the year 0.20 -

Equity component of interest-free loans taken (refer note d below)

At the commencement of the year 158.56 158.56
Add: Additions during the year ' - -
At the end of the year 158.56 158.56

Equity component of deferred guarantee income (refer note e below)

At the commencement of the year 73.78 73.78

Add: Additions during the year = =

At the end of the year 73.78 73.78
(2,534.38) (2,386.10)

* Refer Statement of changes in equity for movement in other equity balances.
Nature and purpose of other reserves:

(a) Share Warrants

The share warrants were held by Embassy Property Developments Private Limited, the erstwhile holding company. Pursuant to the scheme
of amalgamation/demerger from Embassy Property Developments Private Limited to NAM Estates Private Limited, approved by Regional
Director on 06th August 2021, the share warrants were held by NAM Estates Private Limited. The share warrants are forfeited as on March
28,2025,

(b) Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance
of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(c) Retained earnings
The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and accumulated under the heading
of retained earnings. At the end of the year, the profit after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings.

(d) Equity component of interest-free loans taken

It represents the equity component arising on fair valuation of the guarantee provided for the loan availed/taken from the group entities and
Interest free loans taken as required under Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments.

(e) Equity component of deferred guarantee income

This represents the fair value of financial guarantees provided by the Company, that has been recognised by the Company as the equity
contribution.
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Non-current liabilities

14

Borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured:

Preference shares

9% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares (refer note a below) - 0.10

Secnred:

Term Loan :

- from financial institutions (refer note b below) - 1,046.22

- 1,046.32
Notes:

a) 9% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs 100 each

b

-

=

(

9% non- cumulative redeemable preference shares are redeemable on December 30, 2025. During the year ended March 31,2025, the
preference shares have been redeemed.

Details of security, repayment and interest on term loans from NBFC (including current maturities of non-current borrowings):

Sammaan Capital Limited (Earlier known as India Bulls Housing Finance Limited) [balance as at March 31, 2025, including
current maturities of long-term debt: Rs 670.47 Million (March 31, 2024: Rs 5,246.33 Million}| The unamortized corporate
guarantee on borrowings amounts to Rs. 3.05 Million (March 31, 2024 :12.02 Million).

a)'The Company has a term loan facility of Rs. 8400.00 million due to a financial institution as on 22 July 2021,
The above loan has been novated to the Company under a Novation agreement with Embassy Property Developments Private Limited

(original borrower). Embassy Property Developments Private Limited under the Scheme of Arrangement, demerged the said loan to NAM
Estates Private Limited approved by Regional Director on 06 August 2021 with effective from 01 April, 2020

b) The term loan was secured against all the pieces and parcel of land bearing Plot No 6 in Sy. No. 73 in the Kadugodi Industrial Area
within the limits of Kadugodi Plantation village, Bidarahalli Village Bidarahalli Hobli, Bengaluru East Taluka, Bengaluru district in all
measuring 58 acres, The charge over the said land has been released on March 20, 2025. '

c) A corporate guarantee has been given by Embassy Property Developments Private Limited.

d) Repayment and Interest Terms

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sammaan Capital Limited (Earlier known as India bulls Housing Finance Limited)

The loan has a moratorium for repayment/payment of principal amount of the loan for the 670,47 5,246.33
initial 36 months. The loan carries an interest rate of 12.52% p.a(March 31, 2024 -

12.52%) as at reporting date

f) The company has delayed certain principal and interest repayment during the year.

Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Deferred guarantee income (refer note 24(a)} = 1.55

Deferred Revenue 75.53 -

Advance received from customer towards property 4,037.50 -

4,113.03 1.55
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Current financial liabilities

16 Borrowings

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Secured:

Term Loan :

- from financial institutions (refer nole 14 b above) 66742 4,188.09

Intercorporate deposit received
- from related parties ( refer note 33) 9,232 56 5,234.12
9,899.98 9,422.21

Note:Repayment and Interest terms
Rs 9.232.56 millions {March 31,2024 Rs 5,234.12 millions) was received from Embassy Developments Limited*, a related party.
The loan are repayable in full on demand and interest free.

* As on 24, January 2025 Nam Estates Private Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited

17 Other current financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 7.81 45.61
Other Payables
- Payable for investment property under development 4.12 3.35
- Payable for expenses to micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note 18) 236 19.95
- Payable for expenses other than micro, small and medium enterprises 26791 523
Book overdraft o 1.163.06
282.20 1,237.24

18 Other Current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance received for sub-lease of land (refer note 11) 33323 33323
Deferred Revenue 23.70 -
Other liabilities
- statutory dues 23.05 54.53
Deferred guarantee income (refer note 24(a)) - 317

379.98 390.93




Embassy East Business Park Private Limited
CIN: US1101KA1973PTC002298

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in T millions unless otherwise stated)

19 Revenue from Operations

20

21

22

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income from Sub-lease 0.78 -
0.78 -

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest income

- on Fixed deposit 3.47 -

- on Income Tax Refund 0.16 -

- Others 5.54 -
Gurarantee fee income ( refer note 33) 4.72 5.18
13.89 5.18

Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest cost on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- on term loans 117.75 261.95
Other borrowing cost 8.97 26.10
126.72 288.05
Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Legal and professional (refer note 23) 7.98 3.62
Security charges 8.92 10.61
Rates and taxes 16.69 9.09
Rent (refer note 4(iii)) - 0.08
Franking Charges 1.27 1.27
Bank Charges 0.46 -
Miscellaneous 0.91 1.10
36.23 25.77
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23 Auditors' remuneration (included in legal and professional fees)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory audit fees (excluding applicable taxes) 0.40 .40
.40 0.40

14 Capital Commitments and contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities

1) The Company has given its leasehold land, i.e. investment property as an exclusive security for a - 1,283.97

loan taken by L I Victoria Private Limited and Embassy Property Development Private Limited. -

refer note (a) below

b) Liability regarding the Pay order towards BWSSB for the NOC and treated water fees (refer note 825 9.25

(b} below

¢} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (refer - 6.91

note c)

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be cxeculed on capital account (net of advances) and not 0.00 80140

provided for

Notes:

(a) The Company has given its leasehold land as a secondary security for term loans taken on May 30, 2018 amounting to Rs.4,000 Million and on January 05,
2021 amounting to Rs.780.00 Million by Embassy Property Development Private Limited for which security was given from August 12, 2021 and a term
loan of Rs.900.00 Million was taken by L.J Victoria properties Private Limited on June 21, 2021 for which secunty was given from July 09, 2021. All the
laans have been taken from Sammaan Capital Limited. The loan of Rs.4,000 Million taken by Embassy Property Development Private Limited has been
closed on December 04, 2023 The complete charge over the said land has been released on March 20, 2025.

(b) The Company has filed a Writ Petition challenging the Demand Notice/Notice dated October 11,2021 issued by BWSSE demanding to pay/deposit a sum of
Rs.29.95 Millions towards ‘Beneficiary Capital Contribution Charges’ (‘BCC Charges’) and a sum of Rs. 23.78 Millions towards “Advance Probable Pro
rata Charges’ ("APP Charges’) and Rs.2.64 millions towards 'Treated water charges for construction’ ("TWCC’) as a pre-requisite condition for issuance of
‘No Objection Certificate’ for the proposed Mixed Use Development Project (IT/ITES/Office/Hostel/ Retail Facilities) at Plot No. 6, Sy No. I, Block No. 73,
Kadugodi Industrial Area, Kadugodi Plantation Village, Bangalore EAST Taluk, ITPL. Bangalore. The Hon'ble court after hearing the case has passed an
interim order of stay against the demand notice issued by BWSSR and directed BWSSB to issue NOC by accepting Admin Fees & Serutiny Fees of Rs. 9.25
Millions and the said demand notice will be subject to outcome of the Writ Petition, The WP were allowed upholding the d | for Advance Pro Rata
Charges (APP Charges) and Treated Water Charges for Construction (TWCC Charges) in the order dated April 22,2024 Being aggrieved by the order dated
April 22,2024 by upholding the demand for Advance Pro Rata Charges (APP Charges) and Treated Water Charges for Construction (TWCC Charges) this
Writ Anneal is filed hv FFRPPI. and the same is nendine for consideration.

{¢) The company was assessed under Section 143(3) for the Assessment Year 2022-23 and 2023-24, During the certain disall es ing to
2702.80 millions and 1,267.60 millions were made. However, no demand has arisen as the assessee has sufficient losses during the year. The company has
filed an appeal against the order, contesting the additions made and the demand raised. The matter is currently pending disposal before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) [CIT(A)].

15 Other Litigations

Two Writ Petitions had been filed by Mr.Tejraj Gulecha & Mr. Reddy Veeranna (Petitioners) before the Hon'ble High Court of Kamataka against KIADB,
the Company and NAM Estates Private Limited (Nam Estates Private Limited mergered with Embassy Developments Limited on January 24,2025) ,
requesting the Honorable High Court to take appropriate action against the Company.

The Honorable Kamataka High Court has passed the orders on May 16, 2023 and has issucd a mandamus to KIADB to initiate investigation against the
Company for alleged violation of the terms and conditions of the lease -cum-sale agrecment dated June 07, 2007, The petitioners shall have an opportunity
to participate in the proceedings so initiated by the KIADB against the company.

Aggrieved by the said Order, EEBPPL and other parties has filed an Writ Appeal before the Divisional Bench of Hon'ble High Court of Kamataka
challenging the said order.

Consequently, the Hon'ble Division Bench of High Court of Kamataka has passed the order dated July 26, 2023, modifying the order of the Single Judge
direcling KIADB to initiate action against the company as per Lhe provisions of KIADB Act lor the alleged violations of the Lease cum Sale Agreement and
KIADB shall conclude the enquiry as expeditiously as possible and not later than four months from ie., (July 26, 2023) date of order passed by the Court
without being influenced by the order passed by the Single Judge. Accordingly, KIADB has initiated the enquiry in accordance with the court order.
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Naotice under section 34-B(1) of KIADB ACT , 1966

The company received a notice from Kamataka Indusirial Areas Development Board (KIADB) on March 8, 2023 asking to remedy on breach of terms and
condilions of the lease cum sale agreement executed on June 7, 2007 and supplementary agreement executed on July 29, 2020 within 90 days from the date
of the receipt of notice { within June 6, 2023 ).

Consequently, KIADB had issued notice dared August 31, 2023 under section 34 B (1) of KIADB Act and the company filed an interim reply dated
September 13, 2023, Further the company filed a detailed reply dated October 16, 2023 & October 19, 2023 for the matters stated in the notice. In the reply
dated October 16, 2023 & October 19, 2023 the Company requested for an opportunity to hearing in person and 1o produce the evidences. Further, on
December 07, 2023 KIADB issued one more notice under section 34 B (2) of KIADB Act. The company has liled detailed reply to the said nolice on
January 12, 2024 and once again requested lo give opportunily of hearing in person. KIADB issued notice on February 01, 2024 requesting the company to
appear in person or through authorized signatory for personal hearing on February 16, 2024. On February 16, 2024 the company attended the persanal
hearing along with the company Advocate. Thereafter KIADB issued Notice dated March 06, 2024 under section 34 B (3) of KIADB Act requesting for
personal hearing, On March 15, 2024 the company appeared before the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Member of KIADB along with our Advocate
and have submitted detailed Written Submissions along with relevant enclosures in response to the Notice dated March 06, 2024 issued by KIADB w's 34B
(3) of KIADB Act and requested KIADB to drop the proceedings as there is no violation or breach alleged in the said notices.

Further to the submission of do and explanation provided as stated above, KIADB has issued the final order dated September 03, 2024 u's Section
14-B of KIADB Act extending the time limit for commencement of the project by 2 years from the date of approval of the sanctioned plan.

The Appellant Reddy Veeranna and Mr. Tejraj Gulecha has filed a Writ Petition i.e. W.P No,25851/2024 & 25857/2024 challenging the Order issued on
September 03, 2024.The Ld. Single Judge passed a judgment dated Octaber 30, 2024 dismissing the Writ Petitions filed by the Appellant stating that the
Appellants does not have the locus standi to file the Writ Petitions and was not a person aggrieved under law. Subsequently, the Appellants have filed Wit
Appeal challenging the orders passed in W.P.No.25851/2024 & 25857/2024 by High Court. The said Writ Appeal 1797/2024 was filed on 9-12-2024 is yet
to be listed for hearing.

Litigation in city consumer court
A few parties filed a case in the Cily Commercial Court against the present sharcholders of the Company claiming that they were entitled 1o part
shareholding. The judgement in the present case is yet to be ced in the City Cr ial Court,

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profiti(loss) for the year attributable fo cquity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit{loss) attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for saving in
interest or dividend expenses, net of laxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Comprehensive loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
- Equity shares (148.28) (308.64)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid

- Basic

- Equity sharcs 7,50,306 750,224
- Dilutive

- Equity shares* 7.50,306 7,50,224

Earnings/ (loss) per share — basic

- Equity shares (197.63) (411.40)
Eamings/ (loss) per share — dilutive
- Equity shares (197.63) (411.40)

*(March 31,2024 - The elTect of share warranis are anti-dilutive in nature}.

Segment reporting

An operating seg) is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses and for which
discrete financial information is available. The operating segments’ operating results are reviewed by the Chiet Operating Decision Maker (Board of
Directors) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their per fi . The Company's busi activities fall within one
component (namely, "real estate development”). Accordingly, separate disclosures per the requirements of Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, are not
considered necessary. The Company operates only in India, Hence no disclosure is considered necessary. However, the Company has not ed its

operations as al the year end.
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The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an olTice memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their pond with ils the Entrep s M dum Number as allocated after filing of the
Memorandum in accordance with the *Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (“the MSMED Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in
respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company. The Company does nat have any interest dues to micro and small enterprises as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024 - Nil):

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year;
{a) (1) Principal 19.95
(ii) Interest E i
{b} The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year®;
(I) Interest » P
(i) Payment - -
() The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. - -
{d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 2 -
{&) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to thc small cnterprise. for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

* No interest has been paid by the Company during the year,
Tax expense

A T ised in

of profit or loss:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Particulars

Current tax

Current income tax charge =
Deferred tax

Attributable 10—

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss - =

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit/ loss before income tax (148.28) (308.64)
Domestic tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (38.55) (B0.25}
Effect of
Guarantee [ncome (1:23) {1.35)
Guaranice Expense 2133 6.79
Effect on account of disallowance w's 40{a)(ia) - -
Effect on account of disallowance u's 43B {0.35) 3.02
Effect of Non-deductible expenses 4.05 -
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 33.74 71.78

Income tax expense

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the Company can use the benefits therefrom:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unused tax losses :
Unabsorbed depreciation = -
Business loss 3374 599.94
33.74 599.94
The Company outsources its manpower and logy assi requi and does not have any employees on its rolls and hence does not incur any

employee related benefits/ costs.

The Company did not have any income or expenditure in foreign currency during the current year and the previous year,

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility activities

Since the Company does not meet the criteria specified in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to spend any amount on

activities related to corporate social responsibility for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024,
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33 Related parties disclosures

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship
A. Enterprises where control exists
Holding Company

Embassy Developments Limited
Nam Estates Private Limited *

B. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Fellow subsidiary

Associates, Companies and firms under common control

C. Key management personnel

(ii) Related party transactions

Embassy Property Developments Private Limited
LJ-Victoria Properties Private Limited
Citra Properties Limited

Paledium Securities Services LLP
Next Level Experiences LLP

Vijayakumar Dharmalingam (till March 28, 2025)
Shaina Ganapathy (till February 24, 2025)

Rajesh Kaimal (from February 24, 2025)
Shailendra K S (from February 24, 2025)

Aditya Virwani (from February 24, 2025)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Guarantee fee income
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 1.12 1.77
- LI-Victoria Properties Private Limited 3.60 341
Guarantee fee expense
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 897 26.10
Security Charges
- Paledium Security Services LLP §.92 10.61
Miscellaneous Expenses
- Next Level Experiences LLP 0.92 -
Capital Advance
- Embassy Developments Lmited - 8.40
Borrowings-Inter Corporate Deposit- received
- Embassy Developments Lmited 3,665.44 3,069.95
- Citra Properties Limited 333.00 -
Borrowings-Inter Corporate Deposit- Repaid
333.00 =

- Citra Properties Limited
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(iii) Amounts outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Capital Advance
- Embassy Development Lmited * 8,402.52 8.402.52
Borrowings-Inter Corporate Deposits
- Embassy Development Lmited 9,232.56 5,234.12
Other Current Financial Liabilities-Payable for expense to MSME
- Paledium Security Services LLP 0.62 19.14
Other Current Financial Liabilities-Payable for expense other than MSME
- Next Level Experiences LLP 1.30 -
Other equity component of guarantee fee income
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited (14.56) (14.56)
- LI-Victoria Properties Private Limited (14.02) (14.02)
Other equity component of guarantee fee expense
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 102.36 102.36
Deferred guarantee expense (Current & Non-current)
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited 3.05 12.02
Deferred guarantee income (Current & Non-current)
- Embassy Property Developments Private Limited - B
Limited - 3.60

- LI-Victoria Properties Private

The Company has given its leasehold land as a secondary security for a loan of 3 900 millions taken by

LJ-Victoria Projects Private Limited, fellow subsidiary

and % 4,000 millions & ¥ 780 millions taken by Embassy Propert Development Private Limited . The loan of Rs.4,000 Million taken by Embassy Property
Development Private Limited has been closed on December 04, 2023 and the charge aganist the loan has been released. The complete charge over the said land

has been released on March 20, 20

25,

Note

Transactions with related partics have been shown after giving effect to the impact of reclassifications into liability and equity and adjustments arising on

account of effective interest rate method under Ind AS.

There was no managerial remuneration payable/paid to directors during the year (previous year: Nil).

* As on 24, January 2025 Nam Estates Private Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited

34 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

Particulars Opening balance Cashflow Niniash Closing balance
movement
ir val
April 01, 2024 Proceeds Repayments MG THoNMes March 31, 2025
Expenses changes
Intercorporate deposit 5,234.12 3.998.44 - - 9,232.56
Loan from Financial Institution 5,246.33 - (4,575.86) - 670.47
- - Non cash ;
Particulars Opening balance Cashflow Closing balance
movement
F
April 01, 2023 Proceeds  Repayments Tatexent afr oAl March 31, 2024
i Expenses changes
Intercorporate deposit 2,164.17 3,069.95 - - 5,234.12
Loan from Financial Institution 8,394.12 - (3,147.79) - 5,246.33
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35 Financial instruments - Fair value measurement

A The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 18.39 0.16 - -
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,670.63 -
Other financial assets 3.43
Total assets 1,692.45 0.16 - -
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings-Non Current - 1,046.32 - -
Borrowings-Current 9,809.98 942221 - -
Other financial liabilities 282.20 1,237.24 - -
Total liabilities 10,182.18 11,705.77 - -

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts and hence the same
has not been disclosed in the table above.

B Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual
funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024.

Determination of fair values
i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When

applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
i) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values.
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36 Financial risk management

{a

(b)

The Company has exposure to following risks arising from financial instruments-
- credit risk
- market risk
- liquidiry risk

Risk management framework
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the

Llich

1ent and ght of the C. y's risk k.

The Company's risk management policies are cstablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sel appropriate risk limits and controls and fo
manitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies und systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's

activities. The Company, through its training and dards and procedures, aims to maintain a plined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from Company's cush and cash equivalents and borrowings. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure,

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 18.39 Million at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 2 0.16 Million). The cash and cash equivalents are mainly
held with banks which are highly rated. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external eredit ratings of

counterparties.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, will afTect the Company's income and its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exp within ptable p ters, while optimising the retumn.

(i} Currency risk
The Company operales domestically. There are no loreign exchange transactions in the year of reporting.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash Nows of a financial mstrument will NMuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure Lo
the risk of changes in market mterest rates relates primarily to its long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(ilf) Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the year are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Fixed Rate Instruments :

Financial Assets
Fi ial Liabilities

Total - -

Variable Rate Instruments :

Financial Assets S =

Financial Liabilities - =

Borrowings (current & non-current) 670.47 5.246.33
Tatal 670.47 5,246.33

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets ar financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in inferest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amaunts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other varizbles remain constant.

Profit or loss Equity net of tax
Particalazs 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Loans & Borrowings
March 31, 2025
Variable rate instruments 29.58 (29.58) 29.32 (29.32)
March 31, 2024
Variable rate instruments 68.20 (68.20) 67.94 (67.94)

Price risk
Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities as a result of changes in market prices of investments. The Company has ne exposure to
equity securities price risk and is not exposed 1o commodity price risk.
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{d) Liguidity Risk
Liquidity is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing the liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilines
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 10 the Company's reputation.

v's remaining c | maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The contractual cash flows reflect the undiscounted

The table below details the Comp
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Contractual cash flows

Particulars Carrying value

Total 1 year or less 1 year to 3 years 3 to 5 years more than 5 years
March 31, 2025
Borrowings 9,899,938 9,899.98 9,899 98 H - =
Other financial habilities 282.20 282.20 282.20 - - =
10.182.18  10,182.18 10,182.18 - - -
March 31, 2024
Borrowings 10,468.53  10,468.53 942221 1,046,32 - "
Other financial liabilities 1,237.24 28220 28220 - - -
11.705.77 _ 10.750.73 9.704.41 1,046.32 - -
37 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves atiributable to the equily
holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital g is to imise the shareholder value.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of net adjusted debt to equity. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising trade payables
and other liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March
31, 2025 was as follows,

The Company's adjusted net debt to cquity ratio is analysed as follows:

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Tatal lighilities 14,675.19 12,098.25
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 18.39 0.16
Adjusted net debt 14.656.80 12.098.09
Total equity {2,526.78) (2,378.60}
Adjusted equity {2.526.78) (2.378.600
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio (5.80) (5.09)

38 Inter Corporate Deposits

(a) Terms and conditions on which inter corporate deposits have been given

Party Name Nature of the relationship  Interest rate (p.a) Repayment terms  Purpose

General business
Embassy Developments Limited® Haolding company Nil Repayable on demand purpose

* ds on 24, January 2025 Nam Eswtes Private Limited merged with Embassy Developments Limited
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39 Ratio Analysis and its elements

%o

Ratio N D H March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 Reason for variance
Change

Current ralio Current Assets Current Liabilities L6.:05% 0.01% (99.91%)  Refer nole (i) below

Debt - Equity Ratio  Total Debi Sharcholder’s {391.80%) {440.11%) 12.33%

Equity

Debt Service Eamings for debt  Debt service (0.:42%) (0.60%) 41.56%  Refer note i) below

Coverage ratio service

Return on Equity ratio Net Profitsi{Loss)  Average 0.88% 0.93% 3.31%

after mxes Shareholder’s

Inventory Turnover  Cost of goods sold  Average Inventory - - - -

ralio

Trade Payable Net credit Average Trade - - - -

Tumover Ratio purchases Payables

Trade Receivables Net credit Average Trade - - -

Turnover Ratio sales Receivebles

Net Capital Turnover Net sales ‘Working capital - = - =

Ratio

Net Profit{Loss) ratioc Net Profitf{Loss)  Net sales - - + =

Return on Capital Eamings before  Capital Employed (0.25%) (0.25%) (12.96%) -

Employed interest and taxes

Return on Investment Interest Average - = = =]

(Finance Income) _Investment

Earnings for debt service = Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses

Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

Net ¢redit purchases = Gross credit purchases - purchase retum

Capilal Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax

Net sales = Total sales - sales return

Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

'Notes:

(i) The change in ratio is on account of advance received from customer towards sale of property during the year,

(i) The change in ratio is on account of repayment of Borrowing.

40 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property. where any p ling has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any

Benami property.
{1i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

{iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

{iv)iThe Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency ot Virtusl Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company have not advanced or foaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Intermedianies) with
the und, ling that the [ diary shall;

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

- direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatseever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ullimate Beneficianies.

{vii) The Company have not any such ion which is not fed in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other lender.

(ix) The Company does not have any o | eam comp . Hence, pli with number of layers of layer is not applicable to the
Company.
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